
 

  

 
 

Board of Directors Meeting   DRAFT 
      

Friday, March 15, 2013 
10am - 3pm 
 
Brookside Country Club 
3603 St. Andrews Dr. 
Stockton, CA   95219 
 

Meeting Contact: 
Mike Dozier, Executive Director  
559-294-6021 

Office of Community & Economic Development 
5010 N. Woodrow Avenue  M/S WC-142 
Fresno CA   93740 

 

AGENDA 

Duration   PAGE  

5 min I. Convene Meeting and Introductory 
Remarks 

 Chair Ashley Swearengin 

5 min II. Recognition of Our Sponsors 
Welcome to San Joaquin County 

 Chair Ashley Swearengin 
TBD 

10 min III. Public and Board Comment  Board and Public 

5 min IV. Consent Calendar 
 Minutes 
 Secretariat Report 
• Lead Executive Report 
• Communications Update 
• Legislative Affairs Update 

 Smart Valley Places Update 
 SJV Rural Development Center Update 
 SJV Broadband Consortium Update 
 SJV Housing Collaborative Update 
 SJV Regional Industry Clusters Initiative 

Update 
 Work Group Reports 

 
3-12 

13-18 
13 
14 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 

23-24 
 

25-64 

Chair Ashley Swearengin 
 

20 min V. CEQA Discussion 65-74 Pete Weber 

45 min VI. Housing Issue and Updates 
• Current issues and opportunities for 

regional housing challenges 
• ACTION: California Homes and Jobs 

Act 

 
 
 

75-81 

Darryl Rutherford 
Shamus Roller 

15 min VII. Regional Industry Clusters Initiative Update 82-117 Mike Dozier 

45 min   IX.  Lunch   

15 min X. Regional Policy Council Update  Ted Smalley 

60 min XI. San Joaquin County Panel  
 
 
 

 Harry Mavrogenes 
Andy Chesley 

Frank Ferral 
John Solis 



 

AGENDA 

40 min XII. Executive Committee Update  Chair Ashley Swearengin 

5 min XIII. Update: Board Meeting Survey  Melanie Allen 

10 min XIV. Regional Economic Forum  Mike Dozier 

10 min XV. Discussion: Future Board meeting 
locations 

 Mike Dozier 

10 min XVI. Public and Board Comment and Meeting 
Feedback 

 Board and Public 

 XVI. Adjournment   

 
 
 
 



 

 
Board of Directors Meeting     DRAFT  
Friday, December 14, 2012 
10am - 3pm 
John Wells Youth Center 
701 East 5th Street 
Madera CA  93638 
559-661-5495 
 
MEETING MINUTES 
 
I. Convene Meeting and Introductory Remarks      
The meeting of the California Partnership for the San Joaquin Valley (Partnership) was 
called to order at 10:15 am by Chair Ashley Swearengin who welcomed Partnership Board 
members and guests and initiated introductions around the table.  
 
Board members and applicants present included, James Aleru, Lynne Ashbeck, Judy Case, 
Vito Chiesa, Diana Dooley, Mike Dozier (Secretariat), Sharri Ehlert (representing Acting 
Secretary Brian Kelly, BTH), Pat Gordon, Jim Houston, Trish Kelly, Dorothy Leland, Brian 
McMahon (representing Secretary Morgenstern, LWD), Luisa Medina, David Nelson, Leroy 
Ornellas, Larry Powell, Mary Renner, Max Rodriguez, Ashley Swearengin, James Tague, 
Robert Tse, Ray Watson and Peter Weber.  
 
II. Recognition of Sponsors        
Chair Swearengin thanked meeting sponsors Mayor Poythress and the City of Madera for 
the use of the John Wells Youth Center and Pat Gordon of JBT FoodTech for sponsoring 
the morning refreshments and luncheon.  Partnership board members entering the meeting 
room were greeted by a welcoming banner hand painted by children who participate in the 
youth center.  Each board member received a hand painted mug also made by youth center 
participants.  Chair Swearengin extended thanks on behalf of the board to Mary Anne, Seay, 
Director of Parks & Community Services and her staff for the generous welcome and all their 
efforts to accommodate the board. 
 
III. Public and Board Comment        
Madera Mayor Poythress extended a warm welcome the Board to Madera, deferring 
additional comments to his County Panel update later in the day.   
 
Eric Fleming Madera County Chief Administrative Officer handed out presentation slides 
explaining the development of a new phone and online service introduced on August 1, 
2012 to help the County's residents connect with government agencies for non-emergency 
issues.  Citizens can connect with "311 - At Your Service" by dialing 311 to reach an 
operator Monday through Friday from 8:00am to 5:00pm, or by visiting www.madco311.com 
any time.  311 operators will provide information, take service requests and refer callers to 
government agencies.  
  
"311 will provide our citizens with a much easier line of communication to government 
agencies, and will give Madera County Officials an additional opportunity to understand the 



2 
 

community's needs. We would like to thank the County Board of Supervisors for their 
approval and support of the 311 program," explained Mr. Fleming 
 
Mr. Fleming concluded his remarks by stating that litigation between the City of Fresno and 
County of Madera precludes his further participation today and he looks forward to an 
opportunity in the future to address the board. 
 
Mr. Powell announced that he had just received notice of a school shooting in Connecticut 
and his professional obligations required him to leave the meeting. 
 
IV. Consent Calendar       
In the absence of comments or objections, the minutes, secretariat report and other items 
were approved as provided. 
 
V.  Water Work Group Report      
Chair Swearengin asked the board to allow the water work group report to precede the 
CEQA reform discussion to accommodate Senator Rubio’s schedule; the board agreed. 
 
Supervisor Watson provided a brief review and update on the progress made by the Water 
Work Group from its origins in the Strategic Action Plan.  In late 2011, twelve counties from 
the Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta to the bottom of the San Joaquin Valley1 settled on a 
carefully worded resolution of agreed-upon positions on water.   
 
Then, in an effort at water diplomacy, those representatives put together a list over the past 
year of 18 projects related to flood-control, groundwater-recharge, environmental-restoration 
and other water-related projects that they all could support and to seek accelerated 
implementation.  
 
These projects advance common agendas among diverse and often competing 
stakeholders while meeting the co-equal goals of improving water supply reliability and 
restoring the Delta ecosystem. The projects also avoid conflicts with long-term planning 
efforts such as the Bay Delta Conservation Plan (BDCP). 
 
Mr. Weber announced that October 15, the Senate Select Committee on Delta Stewardship 
and Sustainability, chaired by Senator Lois Wolk, received a report from the Legislative 
Analyst’s Office (LAO) on “Funding and Options for Near-Term Action in the Delta”2.  The 
report notes that both the Delta Stewardship Council and the Delta Protection Commission 
have developed lists of Delta-related activities that could begin prior to construction of 
conveyance. In addition, a group of Delta stakeholders has identified 53 activities costing an 
estimated $770 million that could start within the next five years. 
This group, the Coalition to Support Near-Term Delta Projects, includes Delta residents, 
water agencies from around the state, and environmental groups that met for six months 
beginning in the spring of 2012 to identify actions that could be taken in the Delta without 
prejudicing the outcome of the BDCP or the Delta Plan. 
 

                                                 
1 The 12 counties are San Joaquin, Contra Costa, Fresno, Kern, Kings, Madera, Merced, Sacramento, Solano, 
Stanislaus, Tulare and Yolo. 
2 http://www.restorethedelta.org/beginning-to-consider-near-term-actions/ 



3 
 

Mr. Weber congratulated Mr. Watson and Mr. Ornellas on the success of their December 11 
presentation to the Senate Select Committee on Delta Stewardship and Sustainability.3   
 
Mr. Weber stated that the San Joaquin Valley is a microcosm of statewide water issues 
which, since 2007 Mr. Watson, Mr. Ornellas and other key players have worked toward 
developing a common water vision.  This report confirms that they finally have twelve 
counties working together in accommodation of regional water issues with recommendations 
for key projects with which to move forward.4  Mr. Ornellas commented that the meeting was 
well received by state representatives including Senators Rubio and Wolk from whom 
several action items developed.  Senator Wolk acknowledged the work that went into the 
report, commenting it is great to get all the counties together; there is clearly a great deal of 
trust across the counties with folks understanding the importance of cross-boundary issues 
such as supporting agriculture while supporting other community needs.   
 
Sarge Green provided the lists of the counties that have adopted or endorsed the list of 
recommended projects.  Six counties have adopted the entire list of recommendations: 
Contra Costa, Fresno, Kern, San Joaquin and Stanislaus counties; six counties have 
endorsed the list but not adopted all of the projects:  Kings, Madera, Sacramento, Solano, 
Tulare and Yolo counties 
 
Chair Swearengin presented to Mr. Watson and Mr. Ornellas a gift of appreciation from the 
Partnership board, thanking them for their tireless efforts toward improving the San Joaquin 
Valley. 
 
In parting, Mr. Watson noted this meeting to be the conclusion of his service on the 
Partnership and Kern County Board of Supervisors.  Mr. Watson stated, “Being able to 
represent people in your community and issues of importance to community and the state is 
a real honor.  Once involved you realize the importance of that involvement.  It has been a 
real honor to serve Kern County and on this Board”.  
 
Mr. Ornellas concurred with Mr. Watson, remarking, “The Partnership coming together has 
given a voice to the Valley that was desperately needed.  We get constantly downplayed by 
L.A. and the Bay Area and I am so proud to be a part of something so important.  
Conclusion of this water issue is a significant accomplishment, one suitable with which to 
conclude this career”. 
 
Chair Swearengin again thanked Mr. Ornellas and Mr. Watson for their service noted “There 
is tremendous significance in what has been accomplished so far.  Leroy and Ray have 
been able to bring together political elements and its people like Fritz Grupe and Pete 
Weber and Sunne McPeak who also spend countless hours on the issues of water, and 
bringing people together in a calm and professional manner.  Jim (Tischer) and Sarge 
(Green) have been the boots on the ground and also deserve recognition for their efforts”.   
 

                                                 
3 CPSJV-DCC 12 County Water Work Group prepared by the California Water Institute August 23, 2012 
4http://delta.senate.ca.gov/sites/senate.ca.gov/files/Delta%20Coalition%20Projects%20Transmittal%20Letter%2
010%2012%2012_0.pdf 



4 
 

VI.  CEQA Discussion      
Chair Swearengin introduced Senator Michael Rubio who thanked the Partnership for its 
interest in what is arguably one of the most important issues to the state, especially given 
that California is still nearly broke.  It is important that the state continue to grow and to 
remain among the top 10 states for GDP growth and CEQA is a significant roadblock 
between us and a 3% growth rate.   
 
First signed by Ronald Reagan, the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) standards 
initially only applied to public projects but a subsequent court ruling mandated CEQA applies 
to all projects and should be interpreted in its broadest sense to apply toward protection of 
the environment.  Senator Rubio noted it is important to now have a law that is individual 
and unique to our state; four decades ago we didn’t have the many environmental protection 
agencies that exist today and it is apparent that CEQA is in need of modernization.   
 
In the 40 years since, Congress and the Legislature have adopted more than 120 laws to 
protect environmental quality in many of the same topical areas required to be 
independently mitigated under CEQA, including laws like the Clean Air Act5, Clean Water 
Act6, Endangered Species Act, greenhouse gas emissions reduction standards, SB 3757 
and more. Despite these stringent environmental laws and local planning requirements, 
public and private projects throughout the state are commonly challenged under CEQA even 
when a project meets all other environmental standards of existing laws. Many lawsuits are 
brought or threatened for non-environmental reasons and often times these lawsuits seek to 
halt environmentally desirable projects like clean power, infill and transit. Thoughtful CEQA 
reforms can preserve the law’s original intent – environmental protection – while preventing 
special interest CEQA abuses that jeopardize community renewal, job-creation and the 
environment.  
 
Mr. Weber thanked Senator Rubio for his leadership in the area of CEQA reform, 
commenting that at the State Economic Summit, CEQA and its impediments was one of the 
three top issues.   
 
Senator Rubio noted that in California right now there is a 50/50 chance of a project being 
approved even after a full-blown Environmental Impact Report (EIR) while there is a 56% 
chance of the project being challenged while in the state of New York the challenge rate is 
under 20%. 
 
Mr. Weber asked how the Partnership can help here in the San Joaquin Valley.   
 
Senator Rubio suggested one way is to support CEQA reform efforts8.  Ms. Ashbeck asked 
how to get more involved because there are incidents of hospital projects being railroaded 
by CEQA challenges that have had negative impacts.  Senator Rubio committed to send to 
her information on the forming CEQA reform coalition.   
 
Mr. Weber asked the board members to watch for specific case studies that highlight the 
inequity of CEQA and provide that information to the Senator’s office. 
                                                 
5 http://www.epa.gov/air/caa/40th.html 
6 http://www.epa.gov/lawsregs/laws/cwa.html 
7 http://www.calapa.org/en/cms/?2841 
8 http://www.calchamber.com/headlines/pages/08252012-ceqareformmovesforwardactionneeded.aspx 



5 
 

 
Mr. Nelson interjected that it is important to consider a Partnership resolution in support of 
CEQA reform and volunteered his time and his company to help with a resolution.  Ms. 
Medina also thanked Senator Rubio for his efforts toward CEQA reform stating that in her 
work with the city council on infill projects in the city she can see clearly need for reforms 
around CEQA.  Mr. Tse commented that another element of the costs of CEQA is the cost of 
the time; long delays in many cases sacrifice the economic window, citing projects proposed 
prior to the recession that were delayed and ultimately lost.  Mr. Tse noted, “As long as 
there is a delay, the cost of the project will go up and make it less possible”.   
 
Senator Rubio continued his comments noting another big issue from last year was 
elimination of the redevelopment agencies which the senator opposed, noting that there is a 
movement afoot to return the RDAs with a caveat that they go only to communities that have 
adopted Sustainable Communities Strategies. 
 
Mr. Weber commented that the bill on realignment is a bipartisan bill and there is a letter of 
support signed by many Valley members.  Given the importance of the issue, Mr. Weber 
continued, the Partnership might consider a resolution in support.   
 
Moving from the topic of CEQA Mr. Watson thanked Senator Rubio for recognizing the 
issues of AB109.  When parolee reimbursement back to the counties was reduced down to 
$6000, the counties in San Joaquin Valley were impacted more greatly than others and 
Senator Rubio’s intervention is much appreciation. 
 
Mr. Watson continued with the comment that one of the primary premises of the Partnership 
at formation was to deal with Valley specific issues including the fact that our Federal 
reimbursement levels are the lowest in the state and possible the US.  Mr. Watson 
encouraged the Partnership to support the Senator’s investigation into the inequity of the 
way the funds are distributed.  Thanking Mr. Watson for his mentorship as a supervisor, 
Senator Rubio commented that there is no rhyme or reason for the realignment allocation.   
 
Senator Rubio commented that many rural communities in the Central Valley could be at 
risk from drinking water contaminated with nitrates, mostly from agricultural fertilizers used 
on irrigated land.  “It is every citizen’s right in California to have clean drinking water”, the 
Senator said, “but how to get there is challenging”9.   
 
The Irrigated Lands Regulatory Program (ILRP)10 was initiated in 2003 to prevent 
agricultural runoff from impairing surface waters.  The development of waste discharge 
requirements under the Long-term Irrigated Lands Regulatory Program which will protect 
both surface water and groundwater has been underway. The new waste discharge 
requirements will address irrigated agricultural discharges throughout the Central Valley. 
The Central Valley Water Board adopted the first in a series of waste discharge 
requirements in December 201211. The adopted waste discharge requirements are the 
product of four years of dialogue among a variety of interested parties, as well as public 
input received at numerous Central Valley Water Board meetings. It is anticipated that by 
the end of 2013, Waste Discharge Requirements will be developed for all regions in the 
                                                 
9 http://www.pacinst.org/reports/nitrate_contamination/index.htm 
10 http://www.swrcb.ca.gov/rwqcb5/water_issues/irrigated_lands/ 
11 http://www.swrcb.ca.gov/rwqcb5/water_issues/irrigated_lands/press_releases/rb5_13dec2012_irrglands.pdf 



6 
 

Central Valley, replacing Conditional Waivers.  A new irrigated lands management program 
is developing but there are concerns about how to distinguish between low risk/high risk 
areas.   
 
Ms. Case agreed that there are water quality issues impacting many Valley communities 
that have essentially been abandoned by people who don’t want to stay there.  There is a 
need to focus on solutions that are not necessarily cookie cutter/generic because there are 
sometimes areas that naturally have lower quality water without any influence of agriculture.  
Ms. Case stressed the importance of requirements that stay focused on what we are trying 
to identify and report, not simply creating reports for the sake of reports.   
 
Senator Rubio announced his belief that the agricultural industry should be doing its best to 
be responsible in its management of water and products that go into or can seep into the 
water table.    
 
Mr. Weber suggested Ms. D’Adamo be the Partnership representative to monitor the Valley 
water issue and keep the board apprised of developments. 
 
Mr. Tague asked if there is a worst case situation where the issue of water quality crosses 
with CEQA challenges.  Senator Rubio indicated he is not aware of an issue so specific but 
he is aware of CEQA challenges being launched between oil and ag. 
 
Mr. Houston and Mr. Tse emphasized the need to be thoughtful about how we approach the 
ag water management issues to be sure people are educated about the program itself.  Ms. 
Swearengin asked about the required rulemaking steps involved in the regional water quality 
control board.  Senator Rubio advised that the Regional Water Quality Control Board 
(RWQCB) conducts meetings and surveys with evidence that the east sides of Tulare and 
Fresno counties experience less debate on water quality issues that the west. 
 
Ms. Dooley, citing her status as a native daughter of the SJV, extended a very personal as 
well as Partnership thank you to Senator Rubio as an extraordinary leader at an 
extraordinary time.  Ms. Dooley noted that the Governor appreciates Senator Rubio’s 
professionalism and perspective in his spirit of bipartisanship which echoes that of the 
Partnership. 
 
Chair Swearengin expressed her own appreciation of the Senator’s diligent work here in the 
Valley, thanking him for his time with the board. 
 
VII.  Work Group Spotlight:  Regional Broadband Consortium    
Ms. Audino provided an overview of the San Joaquin Valley Regional Broadband 
Consortium, an initiative of the California Partnership for the San Joaquin Valley. This 
initiative is dedicated to accelerating the deployment, accessibility, and adoption of 
broadband within the San Joaquin Valley. It takes a comprehensive regional approach to 
improving broadband infrastructure, expanding telehealth, and increasing digital literacy 
across the Valley. 
 
SJVRBC comprises key stakeholders committed to furthering regional deployment, 
accessibility, and adoption of broadband services in the eight‐county region of the San 
Joaquin Valley, California.  The SJVRBC received funding from the California Public Utilities 



7 
 

Commission (CPUC) to bring broadband infrastructure to unserved and underserved 
communities in the region, through the network of consortium members who were 
strategically chosen on the basis of prior experience with delivering networked 
telecommunications, digital literacy programming, and broadband advocacy. 
 
Mr. Tse presented slides outlining the positive impact on agriculture that will be derived from 
expansion and deployment of broadband capabilities across the San Joaquin Valley.12 
 
Mr. Bryon Horn, CSD Manager with the City of Fresno, announced that Fresno is a winner in 
the IBM Smarter Cities Challenge.13  In 2010, IBM Citizenship created the Smarter Cities 
Challenge to help 100 cities over a three-year period to address some of the critical 
challenges facing cities.  IBM does this by contributing the time and expertise of their top 
experts from different business units and geographies, putting them on the ground for three 
weeks to work closely with city leaders and deliver recommendations on how to make the 
city smarter and more effective. 
 
The winning cities proposed innovative projects and areas of focus for IBM experts. These 
included strategies that address: 
- Economic and Workforce Development — reducing local dependence on a single 

industry· 
- Social Services – creating an ecosystem that supports independent living for a growing 

senior citizen community· 
- Sustainability – setting policies around billing rates, electric vehicle use, and solar power 

generation on a smart power grid· 
- Capital Budget Planning – enabling citizens to request expenditures, while also 

analyzing their potential impact· 
- Urban Planning – taking a more systematic, data-driven approach to housing policy, 

downtown revitalization, zoning, and permits. 
 
Fresno hopes to gain the knowledge and skills necessary to build a regional cloud for 
sharing “open data” and modeling tools that will be instrumental for citizen engagement. 
Fresno will also work with IBM on a plan to deploy ultra-high speed broadband in the 
Downtown Corridor, which could serve as the underpinning for development of a regional 
agricultural technology cluster in Fresno.  Mr. Horn concluded by noting the next steps are to 
reconvene the stakeholders with IBM to work out specific work list for IBM to focus on for 
greatest efficiency when the team comes.  More information and the application are 
available at www.fresno.gov/smartercities. 
 
Mr. Dozier announced that this project results, in part, due to Strong Cities Strong 
Communities (SC2)14 and IBM Smarter Cities.  Competitions such as IBM Smarter Cities are 
often awarded due to local and regional collaboration such as the Partnership and related 
entities.  It is known that a community’s involvement in SC2 influences positive consideration 
from granting bodies.   
 
VIII.   Lunch             
 
                                                 
12 http://caffeet.files.wordpress.com/2012/11/city_of_fresno_roberttse.pdf 
13 http://www.fresno.gov/NR/rdonlyres/396EA10A-8436-4665-807D-A6E11EDC3FEC/0/2013_Application_EnglishEdit.pdf 
14 http://www.fresno.gov/Government/MayorsOffice/strong.htm 

http://www.economicdevelopmenthq.com/blog/ibm-2013-smarter-cities-challenge-grants/
http://www.economicdevelopmenthq.com/blog/ibm-2013-smarter-cities-challenge-grants/


8 
 

IX. County Panel 
Madera Mayor Rob Poythress welcomed the Partnership to Madera.  First laid out by the 
California Lumber Company in 1876, the town’s name is the Spanish term for lumber.  From 
1876 to 1931 a 63-mile water flume carried lumber from the mountains to Madera where the 
lumber was shipped by train. 
 
Madera’s first post office opened in 1877 and the town incorporated on March 27, 1907.  
Landmarks include the notable and historic Madera water tower and the city's fully 
operational drive-in movie theater.    
 
Madera envisions itself as a well-planned and attractive community abundant with good jobs 
and economic opportunity. Maderans see themselves as a strong community, with great 
schools and strong family values in a safe and healthy environment in which we protect our 
resources and provide healthy educational and recreational opportunities.  
 
Beginning in the summer of 2005, Madera engaged in a community process to develop a 
plan to guide the city to a preferred future. This community-wide effort was conducted over a 
two year period and involved thousands of citizens representing dozens of community 
interests, including business, environment, neighborhood, social service, healthcare, 
education, government and many others. The products of this endeavor are Vision 
Statements which describe Madera in the year 2025 in four focus areas: 

• A Well Planned City 
• A Strong Community and Great Schools 
• Good Job and Economic Opportunity 
• A Safe and Healthy Environment 

 
The end product of the accumulation of the community-wide efforts was the creation and 
adoption of an Action Plan which identifies the programs and projects necessary to achieve 
that Vision. The resulting Action Plan15 lists specific activities that will help move the 
community in the direction of the Vision. It also assigns these activities to individuals, groups 
or agencies that will take the lead in shepherding the activities to fruition. 
Referring to the morning’s handouts "311 - At Your Service", Mr. Poythress outlined the 
success of that program serving as a springboard for discussion between Madera cities and 
the county of the possibility combining emergency response services in a similar 
collaborative way. 
 
Mayor Poythress concluded his remarks by thanking the Partnership for the opportunity to 
participate and acknowledging the staff of the John Wells Youth Center for their making the 
Partnership so welcome. 
 
Darin Soukup, Executive Director of the Oakhurst Area Chamber of Commerce presented 
an update on the Oakhurst area, citing the mission statement of the Oakhurst Area 
Chamber of Commerce, “To promote and support the economic vitality while honoring and 
preserving the unique lifestyles of our Mountain Communities.”     
 
In the 1850's the area became known as Fresno Flats providing supplies to mines and 
lumber companies in the surrounding area. With the decline of mining and lumber the area 

                                                 
15 http://www.visionmadera2025.org/ 



9 
 

has become a good tourist destination, located in the culturally rich Southern Sierras just 
moments from the south gate to Yosemite national forest. Local challenges include an 
absence of medical services and limited economic development beyond tourism.  Mr. 
Soukup noted Oakhurst earned the nickname of "birthplace of computer gaming" by being 
home to the pioneering computer game developer Sierra On-Line from 1981 to 1999. 
 
Chair Swearengin recalled a past ballot initiative to incorporate Oakhurst which seemed to 
have widespread support for moving forward to incorporation.  Mr. Soukup stated the effort 
was defeated at the ballot box. 
 
In response to a question about how much partnership Oakhurst has with the local Native 
American tribes Mr. Soukup noted that both the Chukchansi casino and tribe and the Mono 
tribe are active in the community. 
   
Mr. Tse commented that the health care service deficit in the area makes the telehealth 
argument powerful. 
 
X. Mortgage Resolution Partners – Underwater Loan Program Presentation 
Mr. Gluckstern and Mr. Williams introduced themselves and their company, Mortgage 
Resolution Partners (MRP).   
 
Mortgage Resolution Partners (MRP) is a Community Advisory firm working to stabilize local 
housing markets and economies by keeping as many homeowners with underwater 
mortgages in their homes as possible. 
 
America is experiencing an historic national mortgage crisis.  Due to a collapse of home 
values, one in five mortgaged homeowners owe more than their homes are worth; more 
than eleven million families are now underwater.  Nearly three million of these families are in 
default and on their way to foreclosures that will depress home prices further, causing still 
more foreclosures.   
 
Principal reduction is the way to save local communities. It benefits the entire community by 
preventing defaults and foreclosures, thereby stabilizing neighborhoods and protecting 
essential public services. 
 
However, PLS loans are uniquely structured, making standard methods of principal 
reduction including refinance and modification extremely difficult if not impossible. 
Securitization agreements and tax laws prohibit the sale of toxic PLS mortgages except 
when the mortgages are condemned. 
 
Providing Local Solutions for Communities helps local governments purchase and reduce 
principal on underwater loans, preventing costly defaults and foreclosures. The program, 
CARES (Community Action to Restore Equity and Stability), is implemented by local 
communities, and focuses on those families with toxic loans who have nowhere else to turn.  
Local governments have the power to condemn PLS mortgages when a public purpose 
exists by paying fair market value. After purchasing the loans, local governments can reduce 
the principal balance on these toxic mortgages and eliminate underwater PLS loans in their 
communities. By reducing principal, we can stabilize and revive those communities.  MRP 



10 
 

proposes to charge $4,500 for each refinance, which is the same amount mortgage 
servicers receive from the federal government when they modify mortgages. 
 
Ms Swearengin noted this is a timely and complex program and thanked Mr. Gluckstern and 
Mr. Williams for their presentation. 
 
XI. ACTION: USDA Rural Definition 
Mr. Dozier reminded the board that in years past the USDA Rural Development made the 
administrative decision to base funding allocations to states using Census Bureau 
definitions of rural and urban.  The purpose of this action item was to seek Partnership 
board approval of a letter describing this methodology as flawed and recommending it not 
be continued with the 2010 Census data. In the letter the Partnership asks USDA leadership 
to defer to the definitions set forth by Congress to ensure a fair distribution of funding is 
allocated to each state based on eligible population. Utilizing the Census Bureau definition, 
in effect, eliminates funding for all communities over 2,500 in population. However, 
according to the rural definitions set forth by Congress for Rural Development programs 
communities up to 10,000 in population are eligible for Water & Environmental Programs; up 
to 20,000 in population are eligible for Community Facilities Programs; and up to 50,000 in 
population are eligible for Business Programs.  
 
Mr. Dozier recommended postponing action on the letter pending feedback from Dr. Glenda 
Humiston, California State Director at the U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA), Rural 
Development who is meeting with USDA leadership to discuss this topic.   
 
Mr. Weber noted this to be an important issue to the Partnership and to the Valley but 
agreed that postponing the issue to the Board meeting would be appropriate. 
 
XII. Discussion: Future Board meeting locations 
Ms. Allen asked board members to complete a survey to reflect their preferences for future 
Partnership board meeting dates and venues, and their willingness to plan, host and 
otherwise assist in putting on the meetings. 
 
XIII. Public and Board Comment and Meeting Feedback 
Chair Swearengin again thanked the staff and volunteers of the John Wells Youth Center for 
their hospitality and reminded board members that the handmade mugs at their places were 
gifts for them from the children of the Center.   
 
XIV. Adjournment 
In the absence of any further public or Board comments, the meeting was adjourned at 
2:36pm. 
 



 

CALIFORNIA PARTNERSHIP FOR THE SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY: SECRETARIAT REPORT, MARCH 15, 2013  

 
Secretariat Report 
March 2013 
 
Message from Lead Executive 
 
To: Board of Directors 

From: Mike Dozier 

The attached Secretariat Report is intended to give you an update of the activity of the Partnership 
over the last three months. Staff has provided for you the following: 

 
• Communications activities that include outreach efforts, information distribution, and 

articles mentioning the Partnership. 
• Smart Valley Places Update 
• Rural Development Center Update 
• Regional Broadband Consortium Update 
• Housing Collaborative Update 
• Regional Industry Clusters Initiate Update 

 
Over the last three months, your staff has been busy working on the Regional Industry Clusters 
Initiative, and the Regional Economic Forum scheduled for April 26 in Fresno. A full report on RICI 
will be provided at the meeting. The Forum will focus on the effect RICI has on the public and 
private sectors, RICI activities, and on stewardship and equity. Bill Fulton, nationally recognized 
expert on sustainability and planning, will be the key note speaker. A Forum “Save the Date” was 
sent out last week. Invitations will be forthcoming. 
 
The Executive Committee met in a three-hour meeting on March 5 to discuss the future of the 
Partnership. Funding, engagement and focus were the main topics of discussion. Chair Ashley 
Swearengin will provide further information and solicit comment at the meeting.  
 
Many thanks to Frank Ferral and Doug Wilhoit, Greater Stockton Chamber of Commerce, for 
sponsoring lunch, and to Ron Addington, Business Council Inc. of San Joaquin County, for providing 
the meeting accommodations.  
 
As always, staff is here to provide you with information as desired. If there is any way that we can 
assist you, please feel free to contact us. I look forward to seeing everyone in Stockton. 
 
 

 

 



CALIFORNIA PARTNERSHIP FOR THE SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY: SECRETARIAT REPORT, MARCH 15, 2013  

Communications Update  
 
Outreach Efforts  
 

Date Event 

12-Dec-12 Solar Transformation Initiative Workshop, Fresno. 

13-Dec-12 Presentation - Get Connected! grant. California Emerging Technology Fund, San 
Francisco. 

20-Dec-12 Telehealth access for Allensworth residents. Conference call with stakeholders. 

8-Jan-13 Riverdale Public Utilities District Meeting, Riverdale. 

10-Jan-13 City of Chowchilla, meeting with director of Community and Economic 
Development, Chowchilla. 

15-Jan-13 City of Livingston Council Meeting, Livingston. 

15-Jan-13 Sustainable Communities Leadership Academy, New Orleans. 

16-Jan-13 City of Orange Cove, Economic Development meetings, Orange Cove. 

18-Jan-13 Fresno Food Summit Steering Committee, Fresno. 

22-Jan-13 Fresno Economic Opportunities Commission, Fresno. 

22-Jan-13 Greater Taft Economic Development Authority, Taft. 

23-Jan-13 Fresno Regional Foundation, Fresno. 

23-Jan-13 Gazarian Symposium- Ag Valuation: Bubble or Just the Beginning, UBC 
Auditorium, Fresno State. 

23-Jan-13 Northern California Community Loan Fund, Community Challenge, Fresno. 

24-Jan-13 Merced County Association of Governments, Governing Board Meeting, 
Livingston. 

25-Jan-13 State Center Community College District, Regional Industry Clusters Initiative 
Roundtable, Clovis. 

25-Jan-13 Lawrence Livermore National Labs, Livermore. 

28-Jan-13 City of Ridgecrest City Manager, Fresno. 

28-Jan-13 George Washington Carver Center, South Dos Palos. 

28-Jan-13 Central California Regional Obesity Prevention Program and Craig School of 
Business, Fresno State, Fresno. 

29-Jan-13 Exemplary Practices in Education Leadership Conference presented by Central 
Valley Educational Leadership Institute, Clovis. 

29-Jan-13 Regional Prosperity Project,  Philadelphia, Penn. 

30-Jan-13 Telehealth access for Allensworth residents. Conference call with stakeholders. 

31-Jan-13 Relational Culture Institute and Firebaugh Padres Promotores, QuickBooks 
Training Course, Firebaugh. 

6-Feb-13 Fresno Food Summit, Program Sub-Committee, Fresno. 

7-Feb-13 Central California Regional Obesity Prevention Program and Craig School of 
Business, Fresno State, Fresno. 

11-Feb-13 City of Dos Palos, meeting with City Manager, Dos Palos. 



CALIFORNIA PARTNERSHIP FOR THE SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY: SECRETARIAT REPORT, MARCH 15, 2013  

Date Event 

12-Feb-13 Fresno USDA RBEG and Food Commons, Fresno. 

12-Feb-13 Greater Taft Economic Development Authority, Taft. 

12-Feb-13 to 
14-Feb-13 

Tulare World Ag Expo. San Joaquin Valley Regional Broadband Consortium, 
outreach efforts for broadband in rural areas, survey of farmers regarding 
relationship between broadband technology and Ag practices. 

13-Feb-13 Meeting with City of Farmersville and Quad Knopf, Fresno. 

13-Feb-13 City of Livingston Economic Development and Housing Workshop, Livingston. 

13-Feb-13 Economic Development Strategy, City of Livingston. 

15-Feb-13 University of California, Berkeley regarding New Business Counseling Practicum, 
Fresno. 

19-Feb-13 Fresno Business Council, Fresno. 

21-Feb-13 Corona Real Bakery, Kerman. 

21-Feb-13 Leadership Fresno, Planning and the Environment Workshop, Fresno. 

26-Feb-13 Greater Taft Economic Development Authority, Taft. 

27-Feb-13 Biola Chamber of Commerce and local farmers, Biola. 

27-Feb-13 Dr. Rucker’s Wellness Center, Visalia. 

27-Feb-13 Community Water Center and Self-Help Enterprises, Prop 84 Emergency 
Funding for Interim Drinking Water Solutions Workshop, Visalia. 

28-Feb-13 California Go Biz Brown Bag It Event. 

4-Mar-13 Educational Outreach Partnership, Dos Palos. 

6-Mar-13 Biola Chamber of Commerce and local farmers, Biola. 

6-Mar-13 Five Cities Trade Faire Planning meeting, Fowler. 

12-Mar-13 Greater Taft Economic Development Authority, Taft. 

13-Mar-13 to 
14-Mar-14 

California Public Utilities Commission and California Emerging Technology Fund 
Policy Summit, Sacramento. 

 
Electronic Information Distribution 
 
Date E-Blast 
20-Nov-12 CVBI-SBDC Seminar: So you want to start a business? Dec 6, 2012, 2pm 

26-Nov-12 High-Speed Rail Workshops, Nov 30 and Dec 1, 2012, Fresno 

4-Dec-12 Joint Cluster Event: Clean Energy, Manufacturing and Water, Dec 20, 2012, 
Fresno 

6-Dec-12 Public Announcement: California Partnership for the San Joaquin Valley 4th 
Quarter 2012 Board of Directors Meeting, Dec 14, Madera 

9-Jan-13 New Partners for Smart Growth Conference, Feb 7-9, 2013, Kansas City, Mo. 

16-Jan-13 State Assembly to hold Rural Caucus Briefing Jan 18, 2013 

17-Jan-13 New Partners for Smart Growth Conference, Feb 7-9, 2013, Kansas City, Mo. 



CALIFORNIA PARTNERSHIP FOR THE SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY: SECRETARIAT REPORT, MARCH 15, 2013  

Date E-Blast 
23-Jan-13 Stanislaus Business Forum, Jan 31, 2013, Modesto 

24-Jan-13 REXPO IX, Mar 13, 2013, Stockton 

29-Jan-13 REXPO IX, Mar 13, 2013, Stockton 

31-Jan-13 Invitations: SJV Regional Industry Clusters Initiative Champions meetings, Feb 
19,20,21 

4-Feb-13 CALED’s 33rd Annual Conference, Apr 10-11, 2013 

5-Feb-13 Brown Bag It: A Working Lunch for Small Businesses, Feb 28, 2013, Fresno 

13-Feb-13 Upcoming RICI Events of Interest 

19-Feb-13 Brown Bag It: A Working Lunch for Small Businesses, Feb 28, 2013, Fresno 

 
Communications Tools 
 
New Partnership Website 

Several elements of the Partnership website have been out of date for five years. We asked 
communications consulting group Bertz-Rosa Strategy & Creative to update the site structure with 
development done by a local vendor in WordPress format. To ensure Partnership branding, the 
color scheme has been retained but with variations for a new and fresh look. The new homepage 
provides options for rotating information and events. 
 
Annual Report 

The 2012 Partnership Annual Report is still available in electronic and print form. You may 
download an electronic copy from the Partnership website. Requests for a printed copy may be 
made by calling 559-294-6021. 
 
e-Newsletter 

The newsletter has been on hold while the San Joaquin Valley Regional Industry Clusters Initiative 
(RICI) is being developed and implemented. The next newsletter will report on the progress of 
industry clusters: agriculture, energy, health and wellness, logistics, manufacturing, public 
infrastructure (construction), and water technology. It will be sent to all Partnership stakeholders 
(2,540).  
 
Daily News Briefing 

The Maddy Daily continues to be distributed by The Maddy Institute on a daily basis to more than 
11,000 contacts including Partnership board members and work group consultants, business and 
community leaders, and other government and legislative contacts throughout the Valley. It is 
available in Spanish. (www.maddyinstitute.org) 
 
Media 
Traditional methods of communication efforts with the media include press releases, media 
advisories, and editorial content and interviews. In addition, Partnership activities have been picked 
up by Valley news agencies. See following table for recent activity.  
 

http://www.sjvpartnership.org/uploaded_files/fck/2012_Partnership_Annual_Report.pdf


CALIFORNIA PARTNERSHIP FOR THE SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY: SECRETARIAT REPORT, MARCH 15, 2013  

Date Description 

14-Nov-2012  Kern County third most competitive metro in United States. Bakersfield 
Convention & Visitors Bureau. David Lyman. 

26-Nov-2012 San Joaquin joins 11 other counties in support of Delta/Valley water projects. 
The Stockton Record.  Zachary K. Johnson. 

6-Dec-2012 Where are the jobs? Clean energy jobs workshop held in Fresno, Friday, Dec 14. 
Sponsored by: California Partnership for the San Joaquin Valley, Central 
California Community Colleges Committed to Change (C6), San Joaquin Valley 
Clean Energy Organization, and California Small Business Development Center-
UC Merced Regional Network 

11-Dec-2012 Kern home prices bouncing back. Bizjournals.com. 

11-Dec-2012 Building fuels inland boom. The Wall Street Journal. Jim Carlton. 

30-Dec-2012 Work’s never done. Not the type to shy away from a task, an always concerned 
Ornellas reflects on progress, future business in San Joaquin County. The 
Stockton Record. Zachary Johnson. 

8-Mar-2013 Media Advisory: California Partnership for the San Joaquin Valley Board of 
Directors Meeting, March 15, Stockton, San Joaquin County. 

 
Partnership social marketing efforts include Facebook and Twitter accounts. The Partnership 
Facebook page now has 456 “fans” (up from 453), and is linked to Facebook pages of several 
partner organizations. 
 



CALIFORNIA PARTNERSHIP FOR THE SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY: SECRETARIAT REPORT, MARCH 15, 2013  

Legislative Affairs Update  
 
New Action & Information 
 
Councils of Governments’ Valley Voice Trip 

Staff provided materials for the San Joaquin Valley councils of governments’ Valley voice trip to 
Sacramento, although staff is unavailable to participate in the event. The COGs’ trip is March 13 
and 14. 
 
Letters of Support 
 
SB 117 (Rubio) 

Partnership staff is currently (as of 2/15) vetting a request through the Executive Committee to 
provide a letter of support for SB 117, which would consolidate all water quality responsibilities 
under one single agency. The goal of the bill is to eliminate existing funding barriers for 
disadvantaged communities in need of safe drinking water. 
 
Resubmittal of Letter to CPUC Supporting Removal of CPCN/WIR Requirement for CASF 
Applications 

The Partnership resubmitted a letter sent to the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) in 
July regarding eliminating the CPCN/WIR requirements for California Advanced Services Fund 
applicants, which would enable “non-telephone corporations” to apply for funding. This would 
ostensibly enable smaller companies to build broadband infrastructure in unserved and underserved 
areas, which would help SJVRBC achieve its objectives of increasing broadband access in the San 
Joaquin Valley. 



 

 

Initiative: Smart Valley Places 
March 2013 
 
Quarter: 1st Quarter 2013 
 
Staff Lead: Stacie Dabbs 
 
Update:  
 
Smart Valley Places is currently in its third and final year of its original funding award. At the onset of the 
first quarter of 2013, staff worked with HUD to prepare the final deliverables for the grant and create a 
strategy for the major actions that will comprise its final year of activity. In addition, staff participated in 
a Sustainable Communities Leadership Academy in New Orleans that provided a wealth of information 
and ideas about how to build from the momentum created over the past two years. The major goals for 
the coming year are to 1) Create a legacy document that articulates the impact of Smart Valley Places, 
and its lasting contributions to the region, as well as, opportunities for partners to leverage the work 
and continue to support the implementation of smart growth principles in Valley cities; 2) the 
completion of a Fair Housing and Equity Assessment for the eight-county region; and 3)  plan a final 
regional convention to highlight the program and its contributions, as well as future opportunities to 
continue the work (November 2013).  
 
The final deliverables for the Smart Valley Places grant also include: 
• A demonstration of enhanced coordination of regional planning efforts with the Valley’s Councils of 

Governments and generate increased support for the Valley Blueprint throughout the region.  
Including engagement with and connection to smart growth efforts in the non-urban areas of the 
Valley and efforts to coordinate Smart Valley Places with existing regional efforts in areas such as 
economic development, housing, and energy. 

• A tool to promote Valley-wide sharing of best planning practices, consolidation of planning work 
products from various cities in one easily accessible location with staff available to provide related 
information. 

• A final Smart Valley Places report prepared as an engaging and highly graphic color document that 
will generate interest and propose opportunities for continued cooperation among Smart Valley 
Places partners and other stakeholders. This report will capture the legacy of Smart Valley Places 
and highlight current activities in the region that have leveraged the Smart Valley Places investment 
and continue to build from the Smart Valley Places momentum. 



 

 

Initiative:  San Joaquin Valley Rural Development Center 
March 2013 
 
Quarter: 1st Quarter 2013 
 
Staff Lead: Ismael Díaz Herrera 
 
Update: The SJVRDC continues to provide the region’s rural communities information, resources, 
expertise, technical assistance, and opportunities for collaboration. This past quarter, the SJVRDC 
provided assistance to 12 different rural entities and offered information about its services on 33 
outreach efforts.   
 
Small Communities Network 
The SJVRDC continues to distribute a weekly newsletter (Mondays) of resources and information for the 
region’s rural communities. The SJVRDC also facilitated a webinar on March 8th entitled “Using Eminent 
Domain as a Tool for Foreclosure Mitigation and Principal Reduction ”. 
 
Rural Broadband Network 
The SJVRDC continues to convene rural stakeholders on behalf of the SJV Regional Broadband 
Consortium to discuss broadband expansion opportunities in the region’s rural communities. A webinar 
showcasing TV White Space technology will be offered 2nd Quarter 2013.  
 
USDA Pathways to Rural Economic Progress – San Joaquin Valley 
The SJVRDC and California Coalition for Rural Housing are conducting trainings and facilitating resources 
for economic development and housing for staff in 13 rural communities within 6 counties in the region. 
An economic development and housing workshop was conducted in the City of Livingston on February 
13th.  
 
Service Agreements 
Economic Development: 4 Economic Development Strategy sessions have been conducted with the 
Greater Taft Economic Development Authority, and will continue onto 3rd Quarter 2013. 
High School Mentorship: in partnership with Youth Centers of America, providing 32 college/career 
preparation sessions with Parlier HS students. Activities will continue onto 2nd Quarter 2013.  
Nonprofit Incorporation: 501 (c)(3) registration documents are being prepared for submission to the CA 
Secretary of State and IRS on behalf of the Firebaugh Business Association (Firebaugh, CA) and Faces of 
Prevention (Parlier, CA).  
Technology: in partnership with the Relational Cultural Institute, delivered 36 hours of QuickBooks 
training to entrepreneurs and small business owners in Firebaugh, CA.  
Water: in partnership with City of Farmersville, 89 households in Cameron Creek Colony, CA are being 
surveyed for water quality. Activities will continue onto 2nd Quarter 2013.   
 
Communications 
The SJVRDC website will be available June 2013.  



 

 

Initiative:  San Joaquin Valley Regional Broadband Consortium 
March 2013 
 
Quarter: 1st Quarter 2013 
 
Staff Lead: Rachel Audino 
 
Update:  
 
SJVRBC has applied for a CETF Get Connected! grant with a variety of partner agencies to provide 
targeted digital literacy trainings to underserved communities in order to obtain first-time Internet 
adoptions. We will be notified about CETF’s decision in March. Staff is exploring TV white space and 
other technologies that could be more effective in the foothills communities in the Valley, as these areas 
tend to be some of the least served in the Valley. In addition, staff is working with local governments, 
private sector contacts, and community stakeholders in Gustine and Allensworth about seeking 
telehealth grant opportunities through the FCC in late summer.  
 
The California Public Utilities Commission’s California Advanced Services Fund (CASF) deadline for 
applications for underserved areas was in February. There were several applications to provide middle 
and last mile broadband service in the Valley, which are as follows: 

Ducor Telephone Company: Last mile project to Rancho Tehama ($5,179,510.00). 

Etheric Networks, Incorporated: Middle mile and last mile project in western Kings       county, western 
Kern county, eastern Tulare County, and northeast Kern County ($5,491,313).  
Ponderosa Telephone Company: Last mile project in Cressman, Fresno County ($1,027,380) 
Ponderosa Telephone Company: Last mile project to Wishon, Fresno County ($2,029,848) 
Ponderosa Telephone Company: Last mile project to Beasore, Central Camp, North Fork, Madera County 
($1,755,042).  
Ponderosa Telephone Company: Last mile project to Big Creek, Huntington Lake, Lakeshore, Fresno 
County ($898574) 
Ponderosa Telephone Company: DNL update to O’Neals, North Fork, Tollhouse, Auberry, Prather, Shaver 
Lake and Friant, Madera and Fresno Counties ($945,000). 
ViaStat, Incorporated: Satellite broadband access for unserved and underserved census blocks within a 
contiguous set of census block groups throughout the state ($11,130,997).1 
 
Staff is following the process and will provide updates at future meetings. 

                                                
1 These census blocks are predominately in the western San Joaquin Valley. Please see this link 
(ftp://ftp.cpuc.ca.gov/Telco/CASF/Pending/ViaSat%20App.pdf) for a more detailed map.   



 

 

Initiative:  San Joaquin Valley Housing Collaborative 
March 2013 
 
Quarter: 1st Quarter 2013 
 
Staff Lead: Stacie Dabbs 
 
Update:  
 
• Americorps VISTA volunteer 

o In response to the need for additional staff resources dedicated to the SJV Housing 
Collaborative, particularly around identifying funding opportunities, OCED applied for an 
Americorps VISTA volunteer in late 2012. In December, Timothy Ng was selected and began his 
year of service on February 8, 2013.  

o Timothy Ng is a graduate from Oberlin College, where he studied political science and pre-law. 
He chose to work for the Housing Collaborative because he wants to make a significant impact 
in the region after having had little opportunity to intern or work while studying. He is one of 25 
Americorps VISTAs in Fresno/Clovis area, who are placed at organizations by the EDC and the 
HandsOn Network to develop and build the capacity of social programs. 

o Timothy is working on a one-year workplan that includes a needs assessment 
across Valley cities to help us better understand how the Collaborative may be able to serve 
cities as they struggle in the post-RDA world. He will also be researching and preparing 
applications for funding throughout the year.  
 

• Small Communities Network Webinar – Eminent Domain program  
o In partnership with the Small Communities Network and the SJV Rural Development Center, the 

Housing Collaborative co-hosted a neutral and balanced informational webinar for cities on the 
program presented to the board in December 2012 that uses a City’s power of eminent domain 
as a potential foreclosure mitigation tool. To date, only the City of San Joaquin is pursuing the 
program.  
 

• Affordable Housing Summit  
o The 2nd Annual San Joaquin Valley Affordable Housing Summit will be held on September 25, 

2013 in Fresno.  
 



 

 

 
Initiative:  San Joaquin Valley Regional Industry Clusters 
March 2013 
 
Quarter: 1st Quarter 2013 
 
Staff Lead: Mike Dozier 
 
Update: During the last quarter of 2012 through mid-February 2013, the OCED team assigned to 
RICI held about 60 meetings and conference calls with local and regional partners and stakeholders to 
create a list of “Champions” for each of the 7 identified industry clusters: Manufacturing, Energy, Water, 
Agriculture, Public Sector Infrastructure, Logistics, and Health and Wellness. The purpose of these 
meetings was to introduce key partners to the initiative and garner support, recognizing the key to a 
successful initiative was broad and active participation from a wide range of public and private 
stakeholders.  
 
These conversations culminated with a series of Champions meetings held February 19, 20, 21 in Fresno 
for the purpose of bringing together industry-specific Champions to discuss priorities and strategies to 
engage the private sector moving forward. These meetings were organized into three major groups: (1) 
Manufacturing, Energy, Water and Agriculture, (2) Public Sector Infrastructure and Logistics, and (3) 
Health and Wellness.  
 
Health and Wellness will be the fastest moving cluster group, with several partners agreeing to 
participate in an advisory committee to move the initiative forward quickly.  The Manufacturing, Energy, 
Water and Agriculture group also formed an advisory team that will be meeting to develop next steps 
and how to set up future meetings.  The Public Sector Infrastructure and Logistics group decided to 
engage the private sector at the next meeting but will be waiting for the completion and release of the 
San Joaquin Valley Goods Movement Study (likely June 2013). It was also decided the next round of 
meetings will be organized sub-regionally with one held in the north, central, and south Valley.  
 
Networking 

Date Event 
19-Dec-12 RICI Health and Wellness Cluster meeting. Karen Furst, Bill Mitchell, and Cora Hoover, San 

Joaquin County Public Health. 
19-Dec-12 RICI meeting. Glenda Humiston and Robert Tse, USDA. 

19-Dec-12 RICI Health and Wellness Cluster meeting. Tulare County Supervisors Richard Valle and 
Allen Ishida, Fresno. 

20-Dec-12 RICI Agriculture, Energy, Manufacturing and Water Clusters. Conference focused on water 
and energy, Fresno. 

ADMINISTERED BY 



 

PAGE 2 OF 2 

Date Event 
21-Dec-12 RICI Health and Wellness Cluster Meeting. Dr. Walker, Stanislaus County. 

7-Jan-13 RICI Health and Wellness Cluster Meeting. Kathleen Grassi and Dr. Livermore, Merced 
County Health. 

8-Jan-13 RICI Health and Wellness Cluster Meeting. Matt Constantine and Dr. Jonah, Kern Public 
Health. 

9-Jan-13 RICI meeting. Supervisor Hub Walsh and Mark Hendrickson, Merced County. 

9-Jan-13 RICI Logistics and Public Sector Infrastructure meeting. San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution 
Control District, Fresno. 

10-Jan-13 RICI Health and Wellness Cluster Meeting. Amanda Cash and Emily Rosenoff, U.S. 
Department of Health and Human Services. 

24-Jan-13 RICI Health and Wellness Cluster Meeting. Dr. John Capitman, Central Valley Health Policy 
Institute, Fresno State. 

25-Jan-13 RICI meeting. State Center Community College District, Fresno. 

30-Jan-13 RICI meeting, Stanislaus County. 

31-Jan-13 RICI Health and Wellness Cluster meeting. Van Do-Reynoso and Dr. Cole, Maderal County 
Public Health. 

31-Jan-13 RICI meeting. Kevin Klowden, Milken Institute. 

1-Feb-13 RICI Health and Wellness cluster meeting. Dr. Ed Moreno, Fresno County Health. 

1-Feb-13 RICI Health and Wellness Cluster meeting. Peggy Montgomery and John Semas, Kings 
County Public Health. 

1-Feb-13 RICI meeting, UC Merced. 

4-Feb-13 RICI Health and Wellness Cluster meeting. Dr. Virginia Hernandez, Soci. 

4-Feb-13 RICI Logistics/Public Sector Infrastructure Cluster meeting. Patricia Taylor, Madera County 
Transportation Commission, and Michael Sigala. 

5-Feb-13 RICI meeting. Superintendent Larry Powell, Fresno County Office of Education. 

6-Feb-13 RICI Health and Wellness Cluster meeting. Mary Gish, Central California Center for 
Excellence in Nursing, Fresno. 

7-Feb-13 RICI meeting. Chris Fiorentino, Richter Center for Community Engagement and Service-
Learning, Fresno State. 

13-Feb-13 RICI Health and Wellness Cluster meeting. Cheryl Duerksen, Tulare County Health and 
Human Services Agency. 

13-Feb-13 RICI meeting. Dr. Benjamin Duran, Great Valley Center, Modesto. 

19-Feb-13 RICI Logistics and Public Sector Infrastructure Strategy meeting. 

20-Feb-13 RICI Manufacturing, Energy, Water and Agriculture Strategy meeting. 

21-Feb-13 RICI Health and Wellness Strategy meeting. 

 



 

 
 
Work Group Consultants Reports 
 
The attached reports summarize the 4th quarter 2012 activity from October through 
December for eight* of the Partnership’s 10 work groups. 
 
Index 
 
Work Group Page No. 

Advanced Communications Services 26 

Air Quality     30 

Economic Development      39 

Energy   

San Joaquin Valley Clean Energy Organization  42 

International Center for Water Technology    No update to report  

Health and Human Services    Work group inactive*  

Higher Education and Workforce Development     

Higher Education   47 

Workforce Development 50 

Housing    Work group in progress*  

PreK-12 Education 52 

Sustainable Communities     56 

Water Quality, Supply and Reliability    62 
 









C = Completed
IP = In Progress

NP = No Progress

ACTIONS 2012 4TH QUARTER
(Oct 1 - Dec 31)

ADVANCED COMMUNICATIONS SERVICES (ACS)
Lead Organization: Office of Community & Economic Development

STATUS

Objective A: Develop and implement a plan to expand and replicate the most successful strategies and 
programs to bridge the digital divide.

IP  Staff has started working with infrastructure providers 
to document their projects and see what they are 
currently offering.   Staff is working on spreadsheets 
that outline where replicable projects are in the fields 
of infrastructure, digital literacy and telehealth are 
located throughout the San Joaquin Valley. These were 
shared with the Infrastructure WOrk Group and put on 
our website in Q4.

Goal 4: Accelerate deployment of broadband infrastructure through telemedicine and Telehealth 
technology.

IP

Objective A: Develop and implement a telemedicine and Telehealth plan to connect health clinics w/  
medical centers.

IP In conjunction with the County of Kern, Eastern Sierra 
Connect Regional Broadband Consortium and other 
stakeholders, SJVRBC has identified a project that 
would connect Ridgecrest Regional Hospital with Kern 
County Medical Center in Bakersfield. Staff attended 
several workshops in  Eastern Sierra and is working 
with Kern County staff to develop a best practice of this 
project, in addition to resources provided by CTN.

Goal 5:  Work w/  neighboring regional consortia, such as Valley Vision and the Eastern Sierra Connect, to 
ensure the development of a cohesive infrastructure.

IP

Objective A: Share Plans Among Neighboring Regional Consortia as Developed. IP Staff provides updates on a monthly CPUC phone call 
and has had individual 1:1 conversations with other 
consortia where applicable. 


	Board of Directors Meeting   DRAFT
	Draft_Minutes_BoardMeeting_12_14_12.pdf
	Board of Directors Meeting     DRAFT
	Friday, December 14, 2012

	CC_2_SecretariatReport_Mar2013_DRAFT.pdf
	Secretariat Report
	Message from Lead Executive
	The Executive Committee met in a three-hour meeting on March 5 to discuss the future of the Partnership. Funding, engagement and focus were the main topics of discussion. Chair Ashley Swearengin will provide further information and solicit comment at ...
	Communications Update
	Outreach Efforts
	Electronic Information Distribution
	Communications Tools
	New Partnership Website
	Annual Report
	e-Newsletter
	Daily News Briefing
	Media


	Legislative Affairs Update
	New Action & Information
	Councils of Governments’ Valley Voice Trip

	Letters of Support
	SB 117 (Rubio)

	Partnership staff is currently (as of 2/15) vetting a request through the Executive Committee to provide a letter of support for SB 117, which would consolidate all water quality responsibilities under one single agency. The goal of the bill is to eli...
	Resubmittal of Letter to CPUC Supporting Removal of CPCN/WIR Requirement for CASF Applications

	The Partnership resubmitted a letter sent to the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) in July regarding eliminating the CPCN/WIR requirements for California Advanced Services Fund applicants, which would enable “non-telephone corporations” to...


	SVP_consent calendar_MAR13_Stockton.pdf
	Initiative: Smart Valley Places

	RDC_consent calendar_Mar13_mdm.pdf
	Initiative:  San Joaquin Valley Rural Development Center

	RBC_consent calendar_Mar13_mdm.pdf
	Initiative:  San Joaquin Valley Regional Broadband Consortium

	SJVHC_consent calendar_MAR13_Stockton.pdf
	Initiative:  San Joaquin Valley Housing Collaborative

	RICI_consent calendar_MAR13_Stockton_mdm.pdf
	Initiative:  San Joaquin Valley Regional Industry Clusters

	1-ReportINDEXform_Q4-2012.pdf
	Work Group Consultants Reports


